
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

    Meeting: Wednesday, 9th November, 2022 
       at 2.00 pm (Committee Room No. 4) 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 12th October, 2022. 
 
 

5 - 8 



 

7.   Public Participation 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting.  Information on how make an application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.go.uk or by 
contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 07825206525. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 
 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 8.   UK Shared Prosperity Fund - Year 1 Projects   
 

To present the list of projects that will be supported by UK Shared 
Prosperity Funding in Year 1 
 

9 - 14 

(D) 9.   Youth Investment Fund - Expression of interest for Lakeland House   
 

To endorse the submission of an Expression of Interest for Youth 
Investment Fund. 
 

15 - 20 

(D) 10.   Workforce Strategy Statement   
 

To consider the Workforce Strategy Statement 2022-2023. 

 

21 - 30 

(D) 11.   Finance and Delegation Update   
 

To consider an update on finance and delegation matters. 
 

31 - 36 

(D) 12.   Cost of Living Support   
 

To consider a report on cost of living support. 
 

37 - 46 

 
PART TWO  
 

 

(D) 13.   Leasehold Report  
 

To receive a report from the Director of Resources  
 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF PART 
ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 

 

47 - 50 

http://www.barrowbc.go.uk/
mailto:jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

 
(D) 14.   Contract Update  

 

To receive an update from the Director of Resources. 
 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPHS 3 & 5 OF 
PART ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 

1972 AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 

 
 

51 - 54 

NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
 
Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Brook (Chairman) 

L. Roberts (Vice-Chair) 
Barlow 
Biggins 
Burley 
Hamilton 
W. McClure 
Maddox 
Morgan 
Pemberton 
Shirley 
Wall 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 

 Jon Huck 
Democratic and Electoral Services Manager 
01229 876312 
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Tuesday, 1 November 2022 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting: Wednesday 12th October 2022  
at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No. 4) 
 

PRESENT: - Councillors Brook (Chairman), Biggins, Maddox, Morgan, Pemberton, 
Roberts and Shirley. 
 
Officers Present:- Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), Sue Roberts (Director 
of Resources), David Haughian (Capital Programme Manager), Helen Houston (Head 
of Regeneration and Planning Policy), Marie Richards (Head of Operational Services), 
Maisie Shaw (Regeneration and Planning Policy) and Jon Huck (Democratic and 
Electoral Services Manager). 
 
58 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members 
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Barlow, Burley and 
Hamilton. 
 

59 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 14th September and the Extraordinary meeting 
held on 29th September, 2022 were agreed as a correct record. 
 
60 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED: - To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
61 – Appointments on Outside Bodies, Panels and Working Groups 
 
The Democratic Services Manager’s report sought a replacement appointment from 
the Conservative Group to the Member Training Working Group and the Allotments 
Liaison Committee, owing to Councillor Ronson no longer being a Member of the 
Conservative Group. 
 
He also reported that this Committee in May 2022 had appointed Councillors Brook, 

Gawne and A Thomson to the Barrow Forward Member Committee (2:1:0).  Looking 

at the terms of reference of that Committee the members needed to be representatives 

on this Executive Committee.  Councillors Gawne and A Thomson were not on the 

Executive Committee.  A representative from the Conservative and Labour Groups 

were requested. 

 
It was moved by Councillor Shirley and seconded by Councillor Morgan, and 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
1. To appoint Councillor Pemberton to the Member Training Working Group;  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



2. To appoint Councillor Hall to the Allotments Liaison Committee; and 
 
3. To appoint Councillors Morgan and Pemberton to the Barrow Forward Member 

Committee. 
 
62 – Shared Prosperity Fund – Submission of business cases for Year 1 Funding 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy presented the bids that the Council 
would submit for appraisal and approval against interventions E1 – Funding for 
improvements to town centres; E7 – Support for active travel enhancements in the 
local area; and E14 – Funding to support relevant feasibility studies of the Shared 
Prosperity Fund. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Roberts and seconded by Councillor Morgan, and 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To note and endorse the submission of projects detailed in Section 3 of the 

report; and 
 
2. If the project were successful, authorise the Director of People and Place in 

consultation with the Director of Resources, to enter into MOU’s with the 
Accountable Body for individual Barrow Borough Council led projects. 

 
63 – Levelling Up Parks Fund 
 
The Capital Programme Manager requested Members to note and endorse the 
submission of a funding bid for Levelling Up Parks Fund. 
 
The funding would be used to upgrade the existing green space at Argyle Place, which 
was located in Central Ward. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Biggins and seconded by Councillor Roberts, and 
 
RESOLVED:- 
 
1. To note and endorse the submission of a funding bid of £85k towards an upgrade 

to the existing green space at Argyle Place, Central Ward; 
 
2. To agree to recommend Council to include £47,500 of project funding into the 

Capital Programme in 2022/23; and 
 
3. If the funding was successful, authorise the Director of People and Place, in 

consultation with the Director of Resources, to enter into a MOU with the 
Government. 

 
64 – Council Finances Quarter 1 2022-2023 
 
The Director of Resources presented a summary of the General Fund core revenue 
budget at 30th June, 2022 and commented on other aspects of Council finance. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



It was moved by Councillor Morgan and seconded by Councillor Maddox, and 

RESOLVED: - To note the General Fund financial monitoring at 30th June, 2022. 
 
65 – Capital Programme 
 
The Director of Resources reminded the Committee that the Capital Programme 2022 
- 2026 had been presented to this Committee on 27th July, 2022. 
 
The report contained the revisions incorporated to reflect the Town Deal advance 
funding, major project reprofiling, and the inclusion of the Waste Service capital 
elements. 
 
The financial year 2025 - 2026 had been introduced but only to recognise the elements 
of the Town Deal to be defrayed in that year. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Morgan and seconded by Councillor Roberts, and 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To note the Capital Programme revisions; and 
 
2. To approve the Capital Programme 2022 - 2026. 
 
66 – Waste Verbal Update 
 
The Head of Operational Services gave a verbal update on the in house Waste Service 
Transition. 
 
She reported that on Monday 10 October 2022 the Leader of the Council had 
welcomed all Waste Services staff during an event held at the Forum which was very 
well received. 
 
She commented that the Green Waste Collection and the Waste Transfer Station 
continued to deliver their services without interruption. 
 
The following day the refuse and recycling collections were also delivered seamlessly. 
The Mechanical Support and Street Cleansing Services had also continued to be 
delivered without interruption. 
 
RESOLVED: - To note the verbal update. 
 
The meeting closed at 2.53 pm. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund – Year 1 Projects 

 
 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Head of Regeneration & Planning Policy 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the list of projects that will be supported 

by UK Shared Prosperity Funding in Year 1. The projects have been 

independently assessed for strategic fit, deliverability and alignment with the 

interventions and associated outcomes outlined in Barrow Borough UKSPF 

Investment Plan endorsed by this committee in July. The funding must be drawn 

down by 31st March 2023, subject to approval and programme management 

arrangements being finalised by Government. 
 

2.0  Recommendation 
  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee note and endorse the projects 

to be funded by UKSPF for Barrow Borough in Year 1. 
 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) is part of the UK government’s 

Levelling Up agenda and a significant component of its support for places across 

the UK. It provides £2.6 billion of new funding for local investment by March 

2025, with all areas of the UK receiving an allocation from the Fund via a funding 

formula rather than a competition.  
 

3.2 The Fund was launched on 13th April 2022 and £2,477,528 has been allocated to 

Barrow Borough Council, with around £8.3m collectively for Barrow, Eden and 

South Lakeland District Councils. 
 

3.3 The Barrow UKSPF Investment Plan was considered by the Westmorland and 

Furness Shadow Cabinet on 22 July 2022. On the 27thJuly 2022, this committee 

gave approval to submit the Investment Plan to Government which set out how 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



the funding would be spent. The Fund has 3 investment priorities around which 

investment would be based: 
 

 Community and Place 

 Supporting Local Business  

 People and Skills 
 

3.4  The Council are awaiting approval from the Government of the UKSPF 

Investment Plan. If approved, the Council will be required to enter into a grant 

funding agreement with the Government, the content and implications of which 

are unknown at this stage. 

 

Barrow Borough Year 1 UKSPF projects - 2022/23 
 

3.5 In preparation for delivery upon approval Barrow Borough Council undertook a 

call for applications under the following intervention themes E1, E7, E10, E14 

and E33 for projects which could be delivered in Year 1 i.e. by 31st March 2023. 

The Council, as reported at this committee in October, and other organisations 

submitted applications which were then independently assessed by a third party 

for strategic fit and deliverability and the requirement to deliver at pace for Year 

1.  
 

3.6 The shortlisted projects which have met all the requirements of the robust 

independent assessment and form the package of projects which fit our funding 

envelope are set out below in Table 1. 
 

3.7 Feedback will be sought on these projects, and those shortlisted for South 

Lakeland and Eden, from the UKSPF Local Partnership Group on 2nd November 

who through their expertise in their professional field will confirm strategic fit and 

deliverability ratifying the independent assessment. As stated above all Barrow 

projects have met assessment criteria and it envisaged will be supported by the 

LPG.  

 

Table 1: Year 1 Projects Barrow Borough 

 

Intervention Intervention 

description 

Value Project Description 

E1 Funding for 

improvements 

to town 

centres and 

high streets. 

 

£78,657 Public realm enhancements at 

Portland Walk to improve the 

appearance of the area and 

encourage units being reactivated.   

Public realm enhancement within 

Dalton Town Centre. 

E7 Support for 

active travel 

enhancements 

in the local 

area 

£52,913 Creation of a dedicated secure 

cycle storage facility, kitchen and 

toilet facilities within the Boat 

House at Barrow Park.  

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



The creation of a dedicated cycle 

storage facility at the Dock 

Museum. 

E10 Local sports 

facilities, 

teams and 

leagues 

£39,328 Small capital and revenue grant 

scheme for sport & physical activity 

sector 

E14 Funding to 

support 

relevant 

feasibility 

studies 

 

£15,975 Production of a tourism and 

heritage strategy for Piel Island.  

.  

 

E14 Funding to 

support 

relevant 

feasibility 

studies 

 

£15,975 A feasibility study for Dalton 

Leisure Centre and the production 

of concept designs 

E14 Funding to 

support 

relevant 

feasibility 

studies 

 

£7,500 Outline designs produced for 

Lakeland House to inform a wider 

capital bid to increase youth activity 

work within the building through 

Dropzone 

E33 Employment 

Support for 

economically 

inactive 

people 

£78,656 Delivery of ‘The Key’ project 

delivering employment support for 

economically inactive people in the 

local area 

 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Three Focus Groups were held in June hosted jointly for the 3 district authorities 

which brought together over 90 stakeholders. 
 

4.2 A Local Partnership Group comprising of stakeholders has been established with 

its first meeting on 7th July 2022.  Stakeholders include elected members from 

Westmorland and Furness and the district Councils and representatives from the 

business, tourism, sustainability, community, voluntary and education and skills 

sectors. This will be the key mechanism for wider consultation and engagement 

on the production of the investment plans and their future delivery.  
 

4.3  Officers have engaged with partner organisations and elected Members to select 

the projects that the Council is seeking to fund in Year 1. Officers will engage 

with the relevant elected members during the design development process to 

ensure that the projects are fit for purpose and will deliver the desired project 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



benefits, prior to the award of construction contracts. This will sit alongside any 

required public consultation activity. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 N/A 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The funding stream supports all priorities of the Barrow Council Plan, as it will 

support cross cutting investment across the borough, supporting disadvantaged 

residents and creating a vibrant, safe and welcoming place where people want to 

live and supporting the economy to thrive. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The funding period for UKSPF is April 2022 to March 2025 with payments 

expected to lead authorities by October 2022. 

 

7.1.2 The successful delivery of the UKSPF Investment Plan would require resources, 

Barrow BC are keen to build on the programme management arrangements in 

place for Town Deal with Cumbria County Council. UKSPF includes a 4% 

administration fee in 2022/23 which would be used to support programme 

management. The allocations made to the three districts is as follows: 

 

 
Allocations 
 Barrow Eden SLDC Total 
 
Total Allocation 
  £  2,477,528   £  1,990,203   £ 3,845,592   £   8,313,323  

Programme 
Management (4%)  £       99,101   £       79,608   £    153,824   £      332,533  

Available for 
Interventions  £  2,378,427   £  1,910,595   £ 3,691,768   £   7,980,790  

 

 

7.1.3 If funding for the projects set out in this paper are secured, the Council will follow 

its Corporate procurement processes and procedures to ensure it delivers the 

projects efficiently and secures value for money.  

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 Any legal implications relating to UKSPF currently lie with the three district 

Councils as lead authorities.   

 

7.2.2 Upon our UKSPF Investment Plan being accepted the Council will be required to 

enter into a grant funding agreement with the Government, the content and 

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



programme management arrangements are yet to be finalised. Advice will be 

sought prior to entering into such an agreement. Full Council agreed in October 

Barrow Borough Council is to act as the Accountable body for Year 1 of the 

funding programme and resolved that the Director of People and Place was 

authorised in consultation with the Director of Resources, to enter into funding 

agreements with project delivery organisations.   

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 If successful the Shared Prosperity Fund will be incorporated into the Council 

Plan of the Westmorland & Furness unitary authority. 

 

7.3.2 A prioritised list of recovery activities will be fed into the LGR Policy   

  Workstream in order that the post-covid needs of the Borough’s communities are 

  considered in the setting of Council priorities for the new Westmorland &  

  Furness Council. 

 

7.3.3 The Year 1 Projects set out in this paper must be spent and defrayed by March 

2023 and therefore will be delivered by the Borough Council administration. 

Barrow Borough Council worked closely with Eden District Council and South 

Lakeland District Council to prepare our respective Investment Plans as we will 

together form Westmorland & Furness Council from 1st April 2023. Officers have 

ensured that the priorities of the current three Investment Plans are closely 

aligned to enable delivery of Year 2 and 3 Projects by the new Authority.  

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 UKSPF funding is allocated for places and communities and includes projects       
under three themes of Community and Place, Supporting Local Business 

  and People and Skills which will deliver activity for all of our communities and 
residents including families and older people, access to education, health and 
 services, enhancement of town centres and open spaces, and improving cycling 
and walking infrastructure. Consultation was undertaken with a range of 
stakeholders  on the views of the groups and individuals they represent including 
specialist groups. 

 
Risk 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Failure to allocate UKSPF 

monies to projects 

Funding not released 

and projects not 

delivered to 

interventions as 

outlined in Investment 

Plan  

Ensure projects are 

supported which are 

deliverable and provide 

outputs to meet the 

intervention outcomes 

outlined in the 

Investment Plan for 

Barrow Borough 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



   

   

 

Contact Officers  

 

Helen Houston, Head of Regeneration & Planning Policy hhouston@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Barrow UKSPF Investment Plan 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 

Prospectus 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-

shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus/uk-shared-

prosperity-fund-prospectus  

  

Page 14

Agenda Item 8

mailto:hhouston@barrowbc.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-prospectus


PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

Youth Investment Fund – 

Expression of interest for Lakeland House 

 
 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  David Haughian 

Wards:    Hindpool; 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report asks Members to endorse the submission of an Expression of 

Interest for Youth Investment Fund. If successful, the funding would be utilised to 

upgrade Lakeland House, which is located in Hindpool Ward and increase 

support for young people across the Borough. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee endorse the submission of an 

expression of interest for Youth Investment Fund to support the upgrade of 

Lakeland House and to increase youth support activities across the 

Borough. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Drop Zone moved into Lakeland House, which is owned by Barrow BC, in May 

2021. Lakeland House provides Drop Zone with space to undertake their youth 

work activity.  

 

3.2 Drop Zone support young people across the Borough and carry out a wide range 

of activities including but not limited to: 

 

 Extended education provision for young people who struggle to engage with a 
mainstream setting for a range of reasons.  This provides young people with 
access to learning in a different, slightly more informal setting with access to 
GCSE’s and a range of accredited outcomes. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



 Youth work delivery across 4 localities providing free diversionary activities for 
children and young people from the age of 8 years up.   
 

 Drop Zone chairs Furness Youth Work Partnership which brings together local 
partner agencies who support children, young people and families.  As a 
partnership it looks at strategies for future delivery, advises local government on 
emerging issues and solutions, hosts partnership events and looks at developing 
and sustaining services for local communities. 
 

 Provides support for 3 LGBTQ+, 2 young people’s and one adult group.  It 
creates a safe space for members of the LGBTQ+ community, families and allies 
to explore identity and promote inclusion.   

3.3 Everything that Drop Zone has as an organisation provides and delivers is 

centred around young people and their individuality and individual need. 

However, the Lakeland House building, although in a central location within 

Barrow Town Centre with good transport links, was originally designed for office 

use and therefore is not fit for purpose to undertake their youth activity work. 

Council officers have held discussions with Drop Zone and discussed options to 

enable the building to be adapted to enable a wider range of young people 

activities and training to be delivered.  

3.4 To undertake the required improvements within Lakeland House, it is estimated 

that in the region of £300 - £400k capital funding would be required to deliver 

improvement works to the building. This would then need to be supplemented by 

additional revenue funding in order that Drop Zone could expand their offer to 

young people. 

3.5 The Council have taken steps to secure £7.5k of funding through Shared 

Prosperity Fund, which is being match funded by Drop Zone, to appoint an 

architect to produce interior designs for the proposed capital improvements to 

Lakeland House. 

3.6 To secure funding for the capital works and the additional revenue funding, it is 

proposed that the Council submit an expression of interest to the Youth 

Investment Fund, funded by the UK Government. The Youth Investment Fund is 

made up of £288m capital and up to £80m revenue grants. The aim of the fund is 

to provide innovative youth facilities in levelling up priority areas and early stage 

resource funding to under pin them, enabling more positive activities that deliver 

improved outcomes for young people.  

3.7 The first stage to secure funding from the Youth Investment Fund is to submit an 

expression of interest. It is proposed that Barrow Borough Council would be the 

applicant for the proposed funding. The next steps for the project are set out 

below: 

 Barrow Borough Council (Applicant) submit an expression of interest to the 

Youth Investment Fund (subject to endorsement by the Executive). 

 Appoint a designer for the proposed Capital Improvements to Lakeland House. 

 If the expression of interest is taken forward by the UK Government, the Council 

will be assigned a relationship manager who will work with the Council and Drop 

Page 16

Agenda Item 9



Zone to gather more information and submit a report for their assessment panel. 

This step can take between 1 and 6 months. 

 Outline designs are produced for Lakeland House in early 2023. This will include 

a detailed cost plan, risk register and programme. 

 An assessment panel within Government will consider the quality of the youth 

service offer and engagement with young people in the bid, the resilience of the 

lead applicant and project plans, as well as the viability of the project.  

 The Grant committee will review a detailed application produced by Drop Zone 

and the Council and make a recommendation for approval or refusal.  

3.8 Once the Council submit their expression of interest, it will take between 3-6 

months to obtain the necessary approvals from Government to be able to submit 

a detailed application. Therefore, it would be the decision of the Westmorland 

and Furness Authority  to submit the detailed application and a report would be 

submitted to them for their approval to this with a request that the Capital funding 

would be included within the Westmorland and Furness Authorities Capital 

programme.  

3.9 Subject to a successful funding bid, it is likely that works on Lakeland House 

would commence in late 2023. All Youth Investment funding must be defrayed by 

March 2025. 
 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The selection of Lakeland House and Drop Zone was determined through 

consultation with the Lead Member for Children, Young People and Families and 

Safeguarding Champion. 
 

4.2 Following the appointment of the Principal Designer, the Council will commence 

engagement with the Lead Member, local members, Furness Youth Work 

Partnership and young people. 
 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Do not submit an expression of interest to UK Government and therefore not 

seek funding for Lakeland House or enhancement to Drop Zones activities. No 

enhancement to Lakeland House will take place.  
 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The project supports Priority 1 of the Barrow Council Plan, enabling residents to  

live happy, heathy and productive lives, by supporting enhanced youth activity 

within Barrow Borough. 
 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

The evidence required to prepare an expression of interest is funded from 

UKSPF and Drop Zone.  If the project ultimately succeeds, the expenditure 

would be funded from the Youth Investment Fund; the project would also be 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



added to the relevant Council’s capital programme and revenue budget 

(probably Westmorland and Furness Council due to timing).  To contract with 

Drop Zone, the Council will be asked to take on the accountable body 

role.  Existing officer time will be used to prepare and submit the expression of 

interest.  Any procurement activity will be compliant with the Council’s 

procedures. 
 

7.2 Legal  

There are no legal issues to raise in this report, but if successful then appropriate 

funding agreements will be required to be entered in to for which appropriate 

legal advice will be sought.  

 

7.3.1 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 Based upon the timetable set out by Government to secure Youth Investment 

Funding, the final project application would be submitted by the Westmorland 

and Furness Authority and submission would be subject to the governance and 

sign off procedures set out within the Authorities constitution. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No – An equality impact 
assessment will be undertaken through the detailed design process, once the 
scheme designs and activities proposed by Drop Zone have been refined. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Expression of interest/ 

Detailed application not 

approved by UK Government 

 Project cannot be 

delivered 

Officers from Barrow 

Borough Council and 

Drop Zone build a 

compelling case for 

investment in the facility 

in line with the funding 

criteria. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Project cannot be delivered 

and defrayed by March 2025. 

Project funding cannot 

be secured as the 

project cannot be 

delivered within the 

available timeframe 

This project will be 

overseen by a 

programme manager 

within the Council. The 

project programme will 

be regularly monitored 

and action will be taken 

to mitigate any impacts 

on the critical path 

activities.  

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 9



Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Project cannot be delivered 

within the available funding 

envelope. 

Project cannot be 

delivered or will be 

descoped 

The project design team 

will utilise a QS to 

undertake regular 

reviews of the scheme 

cost as the project 

design develops through 

the RIBA stages. The 

final project cost at RIBA 

4 will include a 

contingency to account 

for potential increases in 

cost as a result of 

inflation and availability 

of materials and 

unforeseen building 

conditions.  

 

Contact Officers  

David Haughian, dhaughian@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – None 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9

mailto:dhaughian@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

Workforce Strategy Statement 2022-2023 

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources  

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Council’s Workforce Strategy is due for revision in 2022. 

 

1.2 The Workforce Strategy sets out the Council’s plans, ambitions, and commitment 

to employees across the Council and provides potential employees with an 

awareness of the culture of the organisation. 

 

1.3 The strategy would usually be prepared along the same time period as the 

Council Plan however given the timeframe for Local Government Reorganisation, 

a Strategy Statement has been prepared to bridge the period leading up to 

vesting day. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee approve the Workforce 

Strategy Statement 2022-2023. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Council’s Workforce Strategy considers current employees and the strategy 

to secure future staffing needs.  This is achieved by identifying talent/skill gaps, 

making procedures for managing employees, and developing strategies for 

recruitment and retention. 

 

3.2 Vesting Day is 1 April 2023; Westmorland and Furness Council will have a 

Workforce Strategy for the new authority as part of the policy formulation in 

establishing the governance framework. 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 10



3.3 A Strategy Statement has been prepared to bridge the period to 1 April 2023 

which still contains the achievements and aspirations of Barrow Borough Council 

in terms of the workforce but does not contain all that a full strategy would 

include – such as an examination of future staffing needs and an action plan as 

the size and scope of services within the unitary is yet to be quantified. 

 

3.4 Barrow Borough Council is clear in its ambition to retain all existing staff on the 

journey into Westmorland and Furness Council, and the intention to enter the 

new authority with a complete establishment. 

 

3.5 The aims and ambitions contained in the Strategy Statement shall be passed 

into the Westmorland and Furness Council policy formation process. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 External consultation is not relevant to the recommendation. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative to present. The proposal ensures that the Council has a 

an up to date Workforce Strategy Statement for the remainder of the financial 

year. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Council’s products are the services delivered, outcomes achieved, and 

customers served; these all rely upon a well-trained, effective, caring, skilled and 

motivated workforce. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications from the 

recommendation. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no legal implications from the recommendation. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 The Workforce Strategy Statement shall be passed into the Westmorland and 

Furness Council policy formation process. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, an analysis is not 
relevant to this report but all HR policies have been through and Equality Impact 
Analysis. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 10



 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Council has insufficient 

staffing or skills to deliver 

services. 

Service delivery is poor. Ensure service 

structures align to 

service needs and the 

establishment is full. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Council’s aspirations for 

staff are not clear. 

Recruitment and 

retention are poor. 

Morale and performance 

are poor. 

The elements contained 

within the workforce 

strategy are clear and 

communicated 

effectively to staff. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc,gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Workforce Strategy Statement 2022-2023 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 10

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc,gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workforce Strategy Statement 2022-2023 

 

 

 

Version Control: 

Document Name: Workforce Strategy Statement 

Version: 1 

Author: Director of Resources 

Approved by: Executive Committee 

Date Approved: November 2022 

Review Date Superseded by Westmorland and Furness Council 

  

Page 25

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 
Barrow Borough Council – Workforce Strategy Statement 2022-2023 

 
 

Page 2 

1. Introduction 
 
The Workforce Strategy sets out the Council’s plans, ambitions, and commitment to 
employees across the Council and provides potential employees with an awareness 
of the culture of the organisation. 
 
This Statement has been created to recognise that the previous Workforce Strategy 
required review and that vesting day for Westmorland and Furness Council will bring 
new organisational policies that time-limit sovereign council policies and strategies. 
  
The Council values its workforce and recognises employee engagement and job 
satisfaction as critical outcomes to achieving our aspirational Council Plan and 
providing a quality service to our customers and partners. 
 
A significant change is fast approaching with the Local Government Reorganisation 
in Cumbria establishing vesting day as 1 April 2023.  Developments and 
opportunities include what the design of the new Council will look like, how the 
transition will be managed, how the new Council will operate both in the short to mid-
term, in the next five years and beyond.  During this time Barrow Borough Council 
remain committed to keeping the focus on current workforce priorities. 
 
Monitoring and analysing workforce data will be critical to successfully deliver the 
Council Plan, particularly reviewing the workforce age demographic, retention rate, 
competing for talent and ensuring the Council’s offer is attractive, competitive and 
addresses retention. 
 
This Strategy Statement reflects on the organisational changes in recent years, aims 
to set out the Council’s vision for the workforce, current changes, and provides an 
indicative high-level overview of the journey for staff through the Local Government 
Reorganisation. 
 
2. Ambition and Vision 
 
The Council’s ambition and vision is for the Borough to be a great place to live, work 
and visit.  The Council’s resources will be used in the best way that focuses upon 
achievement of the objectives and priorities established in the Council Plan.  Service 
developments and projects will need to be innovative and creative to deliver the 
Council’s vision and explore different ways to work to make the most of the 
resources available.  The Council aims to be the employer of choice. 
 
The Council considers its employees among the strongest ambassadors and 
advocates for the Borough.  
 
The Council uses performance appraisals and service developments to identify skills 
gaps within the workforce.  The Council supports professional training linked to 
current roles, managerial development programmes, and corporate training such as 
health and safety, risk management, and change management.  Through the HR 
Department the Council is linked with education providers and training institutions to 

Page 26

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 
Barrow Borough Council – Workforce Strategy Statement 2022-2023 

 
 

Page 3 

enable development of any targeted programmes; other specialised training is 
sourced where needed. 
 
An aspiration that will not be addressed in the short-term, that will be carried into 
Westmorland and Furness Council, is an apprenticeship programme.  The Council 
has a good record of nurturing and developing officers into professional roles and 
managerial positions.  A diverse workforce is considered essential to delivering the 
priorities and objectives set out in the Council Plan. 
 
3. Recent Developments 
 
The Council has achieved a great deal of organisational change in the last few 
years. 
 
The Values and Behaviours Framework was adopted in December 2018.  The 
framework was intentionally created by non-managerial staff to ensure that 
ownership and inclusion were prevalent.  Senior Management welcomed the 
framework as an indication of the culture of the organisation, and an initial event with 
Heads of Services was organised to gauge the organisational fit. 
 
During 2019 the Council recruited a new Chief Executive who embraced the Values 
and Behaviours Framework and engaged in a programme of events with Heads of 
Service designed to embed the values, demonstrate the behaviours and to identify 
the most effective methods to engage all staff in immersive sessions. 
 
The organisational rollout of the Values and Behaviours Framework was interrupted 
by COVID-19, however changes in the activities enabled a hybrid of remote and in-
person events to be held across 2020 and 2021. 
 
The Council has incorporated several changes in response to the suggestions and 
proposals garnered from the staff sessions, including: 
 

 Be Proud employee recognition awards – colleagues nominate those 
demonstrating the Council’s values and behaviours, those going above and 
beyond in serving the Council and residents. 

 Agile working – retaining the remote working and flexible working that was 
initially created as part of the response to COVID-19; the Council has invested 
in the equipment and infrastructure around agile working. 

 Staff newsletter – an internal communications team made up from staff 
volunteers has been established and produces a quarterly update.  The 
newsletter is internal to Barrow Borough Council – there is a separate Local 
Government Reorganisation newsletter. 

 Health and Wellbeing – an internal group of volunteers came together during 
COVID-19 to identify ways in which those working in different ways could 
continue to be part of a team, to engage with colleagues, and the volunteers 
arranged activities online and in-person.  The Council continues to sign-post 
health and wellbeing opportunities. 

 The Council undertook a structural review through 2021-2022 leading to a 
restructure of the People and Place directorate – aligning services and 

Page 27

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 
Barrow Borough Council – Workforce Strategy Statement 2022-2023 

 
 

Page 4 

resources to the Council’s priorities and objectives; the Resources directorate 
was also reviewed to ensure those resources were best structured to deliver 
statutory duties and support frontline services.  

 
4. Future Opportunities 
 
Retention and Recruitment is a challenge due to the uncertainty surrounding Local 
Government Reorganisation, market competition, and the demographic of the 
existing talent pool. 
 
The opportunity that merging into Westmorland and Furness Council brings, is that 
of capacity and capability.  Westmorland and Furness Council will consist of Barrow 
Borough Council, Eden District Council, South Lakeland District Council, and a share 
of Cumbria County Council.  Merging the staff together should provide greater 
capacity and hopefully an increase in capability as each authority currently has 
expertise and specialists which will multiply. 
 
Local opportunities continue within Westmorland and Furness Council; the new 
Council has established the continuance of administrative centres across the new 
Council area; Barrow Town Hall for example, and other venues such as the Forum 
and Dock Museum continue. 
 
The change in Council’s is a significant event and the Council communicates with all 
staff as the journey progresses.  It is recognised that there has been some 
uncertainty for staff since the initial decision to reorganise Cumbria, but once the 
Shadow Authority was elected and established, the transition arrangements for 
staffing has become clearer.  Communication is vital and the Council supplements 
the regular newsletter with briefings and utilises the management cascade structure 
to deliver updates. 
 
The Council hopes to retain all existing staff on the journey to Westmorland and 
Furness, and to recruit to vacancies to have a full establishment on vesting day.  The 
career opportunities for staff in the future Council increase in breadth and scope. 
 
Many officers are involved in the development and design of services within the new 
Council as workstreams established to manage the transition require those that carry 
out the duties and functions now, must ensure those continue for our residents and 
other customers. 
 
The Shadow Westmorland and Furness Council has recruited the permanent Chief 
Executive and Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer); the remaining statutory 
officer (Monitoring Officer) is to be recruited by 31 December 2022.  Plans to have 
recruited the senior management structure ahead of 1 April 2023 have progressed 
with the intention of those officers starting in the new roles from vesting day.  An 
understanding of the current middle management and the future needs of the new 
structure will be developed by vesting day, but no recruitment or assimilation is 
expected to have taken place.  All other staff will transfer in current roles and will be 
assimilated or recruited into new roles beyond vesting day.  
 

Page 28

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



 
Barrow Borough Council – Workforce Strategy Statement 2022-2023 

 
 

Page 5 

Barrow Borough Council shall ensure that effective communication and support is 
provided to staff during this period of significant change. 
 
The overall Local Government Reorganisation Programme provides the direction of 
travel, policy and expectations; the local management of staff-related processes lies 
with each Council as the current employers and those best placed to ensure an 
effective and engaging delivery is achieved. 

 
5. Monitoring 
 
Data will be monitored on employee turnover, reasons for leaving, recruitment 
drives, staff absence, engagement in wellbeing initiatives, management and staff 
development. 
 
Data will be reported on a quarterly basis to the Senior Management Team.  The 
aims and ambitions contained in this Strategy Statement shall be passed into the 
Westmorland and Furness Council policy formation process. 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

Finance and Delegation Update  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report contains an update on finance and delegation matters including future 

operation of the Local Government Reorganisation implementation reserve, and 

an addendum to the Council’s Pay Policy in relation to the waste management 

service. 

 

1.2 The report also seeks confirmation of delegations required for the effective 

operation of the waste management service. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee:-  

 

1. Delegate the use of financial reserves for the purposes of Local 

Government Reorganisation to the Director of Resources in 

consultation with the Chair of the Executive Committee; 
 

2. Delegate the setting of fees and charges associated with the Walney 

Road garage to the Head of Operational Services in consultation with 

the Director of Resources; 
 

3. Delegate the spot sale of recyclate materials to the Head of Operational 

Services; and 
 

4. Approve the Pay Policy addendum that incorporates the waste 

management service depot staff as set out in paragraph 3.17. 

 

 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 11



 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

Local Government Reorganisation 

3.1 On 7 December 2021 Council resolved to contribute up to £1.6m into the Local 

Government Reorganisation (LGR) implementation reserve.  The Cumbrian 

Councils worked together to estimate a high level budget for two safe and legal 

unitary authorities on 1 April 2023. 

 

3.2 The districts resolved to pass their contributions into Cumbria County Council 

under governance arrangement and a scheme of delegation endorsed by the 

Section 151 Officers. 

 

3.3 The implementation reserve has been fully committed against the various 

workstreams and it may be necessary to fund further expenditure from sovereign 

authorities.  Whilst it is not all spent, it is committed against expected 

expenditure leading up to 1 April 2023. 

 

3.4 The further expenditure comes from additional requests from the workstreams 

that is outside the budget identified.  

 

3.5  It is proposed that as any new expenditure requests are approved, then a 

sovereign authority covers that expenditure; being mindful of the financial 

position of the authority. There are already costs being covered outside the 

implementation reserve and those shall be taken into consideration as well 

 

3.6 It is requested that delegation is given to the Director of Resources, in 

consultation with the Chair of the Executive Committee, to consider and cover 

any LGR implementation funding requests that the Council can cover, provided 

the core balance of financial reserves remains above the minimum requirement. 

 

3.7 Any expenditure that is covered will be reported as a use of reserves to the next 

scheduled Executive Committee. 

 

Waste Management 

 

3.8 In taking on direct delivery of the Walney Road depot and operations, the 

Council has a garage facility that is used to maintain the waste vehicle fleet. 

 

3.9 Whilst the Council is not operating the garage commercially there is spare 

capacity that has previously been sold to a few local organisations; there are 

various service levels already established. In order to continue selling the spare 

capacity of the garage operation, delegation to the Head of Operational Services 

is requested in setting the fees and charges for the services being provided 

 

Page 32

Agenda Item 11



3.10 The Council is not acting commercially in competition with alterative providers 

and is seeking to recover income to maintain the full time garage facility that 

ensures a responsive service for the Council’s fleet. 

 

3.11 The recyclate that is baled or bundled for sale is sold on an active market. Each 

material has a price that can change as often as daily, and the activeness of the 

markets fluctuate with supply and demand; transportation can also have a 

bearing on the pricing 

 

3.12 In order to enable the effective and efficient sale of recyclate, it is requested that 

the selection of the spot price for recyclates is delegated to the Head of 

Operational Services. 

 

3.13 Prices will be fluid and change daily and it may transpire that a particular price 

changes the day after a sale has been confirmed, and in delegating this 

responsibility to officers, Committee accepts that this may occur and that the 

delegation is there to ensure that the service operates as effectively as possible 

and is agile and flexible with regards to prices for recylates. 

 

Pay Policy 

 

3.14 As part of the transfer of staff for the waste management service, the Council 

wishes to offer contracts of employment with the Council’s terms and conditions, 

including salaries. 

 

3.15 On the basis that South Lakeland District Council directly deliver a waste 

management service and that vesting day is 1 April 2023, management are 

matching the job roles across the two authorities. 

 

3.16 This approach creates harmonisation ahead of vesting day and can be managed 

by Barrow Borough Council. 

 

3.17 It is proposed that an addendum is added to the Council’s approved Pay Policy 

to include: 

 

 For the Council’s waste management service depot staff (excluding the 

garage) the pay and therefore grading shall match to South Lakeland 

District Council, including any pay awards subsequently agreed. 

 

3.18 In achieving early harmonisation the pay award that will apply from 1 April 2022 

will also apply to those that move to Barrow Borough Council contracts. 

 

3.19 As previously reported to the Executive Committee, the local government pay 

award is likely to be much higher than the budget estimate and inclusion of the 

waste management service may increase that budget pressure. 

 

Page 33

Agenda Item 11



3.20 It is intended that a report to the next Executive Committee will encompass the 

budget, procurement and resources of what is now the waste management 

service. 

 

3.21 It is requested that the Pay Policy addendum is approved, added to the website 

and shared with the union. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 The Local Government Reorganisation Finance and Commercial Board has 

been consulted in relation to the implementation reserve. 

 

4.2 GMB have been consulted in relation to the harmonisation of the staff transferred 

into the waste management service. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternatives recommended, however the Council may choose not to 

support the LGR implementation reserve, to not delegate the powers requested 

to officers, and to not harmonise the pay and conditions of the transferred waste 

management service staff. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The recommendations relate to the governance and financial resilience 

underpinning the Council as a whole, and the delivery of the Council Plan 

Priorities. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 There may be a need to fund LGR implementation expenditure from the 

Council’s financial reserves; the Section 151 Officer shall be delegated to accept 

and reject funding requests and shall ensure that the Council’s financial position 

is considered at all times. 

 

7.1.2 The waste management service budget will reflect the Walney Road garage 

income; the sale of recyclate materials is an anticipated income for the service. 

 

7.1.3 The incorporation of the waste management service to Council contracts shall be 

reflected in the revised budget that is planned for the next Executive Committee 

meeting; discussions with the staff and unions is already underway. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 The LGR implementation governance remains in place and any expenditure to 

be supported shall continue to follow the procedure, including procurement rules. 

 

7.2.2 The delegations to the Head of Operational Services shall be reflected in the 

Constitution. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 11



 

7.2.3 The Head of HR shall ensure the appropriate contracts of employment are 

issued to the waste management service staff moving to Council terms and 

conditions. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 The LGR implementation reserve exists to fund the transition to the two unitary 

authorities, there will be a closing reconciliation and any available balance will be 

split. 

 

7.3.2 The delegations shall be communicated to Westmorland and Furness Council to 

ensure that the waste management service can continue to operate effectively. 

 

7.3.3 The early harmonisation of pay and grading will be complete before vesting day. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, but the protections of the 
TUPE process continue to apply. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Financial sustainability if 

funds are used for the LGR 

implementation reserve. 

Barrow Borough 

Council has insufficient 

financial reserves. 

Close monitoring and 

clear commitment 

against financial 

reserves. 

Section 151 Officer 

authorised to approve 

and reject funding 

requests. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Waste management service 

income is lost. 

Service net cost 

increases. 

Set fees and charges to 

cover spare capacity 

within the garage and 

delegate spot price 

recyclate sales. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Waste management service 

transferred staff remain on 

former terms and conditions. 

Council has no basis for 

the pay and potential 

unequal pay, although 

TUPE covers that 

scenario provided there 

is the intention to 

address any issues.  

Pay Policy updated to 

recognise the South 

Lakeland District Council 

scheme as the basis for 

harmonisation of pay 

and grading. 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 11



 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

Council Report: Local 

Government Reorganisation – 

Implementation Reserve 

7 December 2021 

www.barrowbc.gov.uk  

  

Page 36

Agenda Item 11

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

Wednesday, 9 November 2022 

Cost of Living Support  

 
 

Report from:   Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Council identified £310,000 from the Welfare Reserve to support a Housing 

First project that can no longer proceed. 

 

1.2 This report proposes the use of £310,000 as Cost of Living Support and 

proposes a distribution based upon the needs identified by the Community 

Prosperity Partnership. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee:-  

 

1. Agree to remove the Housing First project from the capital programme. 

2. Consider the allocation of £310,000 from the Welfare Reserve towards 

Cost of Living Support as: 

a. £100,000 to support the warm spots project; 

b. £100,000 split into large direct grants to support established 

organisations providing food, fuel and emergency support into 

the community; 

c. £110,000 as a small grants programme to fund third sector 

organisations supporting the community through the winter. 

3. Delegate confirmation of the lead organisations for item 2a and 

recipients of item 2b to the Director of Resources in consultation with 

the Chair of the Executive Committee, based upon the 

recommendations of the Community Prosperity Partnership; 

4. Delegate authority to award the grants for items 2a and 2b to the 

Director of Resources in consultation with the Chair of the Executive 

Committee; 

Page 37

Agenda Item 12



5. Instruct the Director of Resources to establish a small grants 

programme for item 2c; 

6. Delegate authority to award the small grants to the Director of 

Resources in consultation with a working group of 3 Members 

(politically balanced), drawn from the Executive Committee; and 

7. Delegate authority to the Director of Resources to vire between the 

schemes in consultation with the Chair of the Executive Committee to 

ensure that funding is distributed efficiently.  

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 On 27 July 2021 the Executive Committee approved the creation of a Housing 

First project for transitional housing. 

 

3.2 Housing First is an intervention which supports homeless people with multiple  

and complex needs, which most commonly relate to mental health issues and  

alcohol and/drug misuse, to access and maintain independent housing.  

 

3.3 The Council identified a (Council owned) potential property to convert into 

multiple self-contained units which would then require external specialist support 

through recovery and ultimately transferring into general housing. 

 

3.4 The property identified is not suitable for conversion as intended, the provision of 

Housing First remains a strategic issue Cumbria-wide. 

 

3.5 It is not possible to deliver an alternative scheme with the same outcome without 

a property acquisition and subsequent conversion, or to purchase a purpose-built 

facility, or to construct a new purpose-built facility. 

 

3.6 The Council does not have the financial resources to increase the project funding 

and Members are asked to agree that the Housing First project is removed from 

the capital programme. 

 

3.7 The funding for the project is held in the Welfare Reserve at £310,000 and it is 

proposed that Members consider allocating this sum towards Cost of Living 

Support. 

 

3.8 Management are working with Cumbria County Council’s Community Services 

Team and shall continue to deliver the approvals with their support and 

expertise; the Community Services Team is linked into the Community Prosperity 

Partnership. 

 

3.9 The Community Prosperity Partnership is a working group of the Local 

Resilience Forum; it is chaired by Cumbria County Council at a local level, and 

membership comes from the third sector primarily – its purpose is to support the 

community through the recovery from the pandemic and to improve general 

prosperity in the Borough. 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 12



3.10 The available funds have been split between projects as follows and Members 

are asked to consider the allocations: 

 

a. £100,000 to support the warm spots project; 

b. £100,000 split into large direct grants to support established organisations 

providing fuel and food support into the community; 

c. £110,000 as a small grants programme to fund third sector organisations 

supporting the community through the winter. 

 

3.11 Specific delegations are also requested to enable the efficient distribution of 

approved funds; to the Director of Resources in consultation with the Chair of the 

Executive Committee as specified in the recommendations. 

 

Warm Spots 

 

3.12 It is proposed that a sum of money is allocated to support the development and 

running of warm spots in the Borough.   A lead organisation would be identified 

by the Community Prosperity Partnership that would be empowered to 

administer the funds provided.  The lead would work with those interested in 

running warm spots and administer funding to them as appropriate, and ensure a 

basic evaluation is carried out.  There would be a small portion of the funding 

required to cover administration of the fund. 

 

Direct Grants 

 

3.13 It is proposed that lump sums of funding are awarded to 2 or 3 key organisations 

to provide food, fuel vouchers and emergency support directly to the community 

over winter.  Those funded would act as central points to which all the 

community and partner organisations could refer into.  These organisations 

would be identified by the Community Prosperity Partnership. 

 

Small Grants 

 

3.14 It is proposed that a time limited grants scheme for third sector organisations 

supporting the community through the winter.  This would be for the Council to 

administer; there would be an application window for organisations to apply into.  

It is envisaged that the grant would include running costs for third sector 

organisations as this has been identified by a number of groups as a significant 

pressure at present and a gap in terms other funding sources.  Without support 

this may lead to some organisations struggling to continue to provide or extend 

services through the winter. 

 

3.15 The Executive Committee previously established the COVID-19 Local Welfare 

Support Working Group to manage hardship funding and it is proposed that this 

is updated as the Local Welfare Working Support Group with terms of reference 

at Appendix 1.  A scheme outline is drafted as Appendix 2; an application form 

will be developed if a scheme is agreed. 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 12



4.0 Consultation  

4.1 There has been no external consultation as yet; if the recommendations are 

approved the Council will consult with the Community Prosperity Partnership 

through liaison with Cumbria County Council Community Services Team. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The Council may choose to allocate less than £310,000; may alter the split of 

funding or choose other methods of distribution.  The recommendation is based 

upon existing structures to create an effective project. 

 

5.2 The funds may be held for a future Housing First scheme, yet to be specified. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The recommendations aim to support resident’s health and well-being, access to 

assistance and advice, and the existing community support network. 

 

6.2 Helping those suffering from the pressures the cost of living crises creates 

underpins the Council Plan priority to support people. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The Cost of Living Fund would be cash limited at £310,000 and is funded from 

the Welfare Reserve. 

 

7.1.2 A process for the small grants is required and the Local Welfare Working 

Support Group will need to be established and the Group resourced. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 Section 111 Local Government Act 1972 provides the power for the Council to do 

anything calculated to facilitate the delivery of the Council’s primary function.  

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 There are no implications for Local Government Reorganisation. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the recommendation is not 
choosing the individuals impacted.  The proposed distribution of funds links into 
existing initiatives and organisations within the third sector.  The recommendations 
seek to support the third sector in achieving the common goal of creating a positive 
social impact.  All applications to the small grant fund will be considered on their 
merits. 

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 12



 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Cost of living crisis impacts 

household’s ability to fund 

food, fuel, and other 

emergency needs. 

Insufficient food for the 

household; heating 

turned down/off during 

winter. 

Add to those 

organisations able to 

deliver direct support to 

residents. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Overspend the budget. Reserves would be 

withdrawn from another 

project. 

Budgetary control. 

 

Contact Officers  

Director of Resources directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Local Welfare Support Working Group 

Terms of Reference 

2 Cost of Living Fund 

Small Grant Scheme 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

Executive Committee 

21 July 2021 

Housing First – Transitional 

Housing Model 

www.barrowbc.gov.uk 

  

Page 41

Agenda Item 12

mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk
http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Last updated 29 October 2022 

 

Barrow Borough Council 

Executive Committee 

Local Welfare Support Working Group 

 

 

Terms of Reference 

 

1.0 Purpose 
 
To facilitate local welfare support for the benefit of the residents of 
Barrow Borough Council.  The Local Welfare Support Working Group is 
a working group drawn from the membership of the Executive 
Committee.  The Director of Resources will consult with the Working 
Group when considering local welfare support funding allocations. 
 
The Barrow Community Local Resilience Forum (BCLRF) sub-group, the 
Community Prosperity Partnership, will determine local needs and 
identify key organisations/delivery partners. 

 
 
2.0 Membership 

 
The Working Group will have three Members.  Membership will be drawn 
from the Executive Committee as the source of delegated authority.  The 
Chief Executive and Director of Resources will also attend the Working 
Group meetings.  Membership will end on 31 March 2023, or when the 
funds are depleted. 

 

3.0 Chair 
 
The Working Group will elect a Chair at their first meeting. 

 
4.0 Quorum 

 
The quorum for the Working Group will be two Members. 

 
5.0 Attendance 

 
In addition to the Council Officers and Members, a representative from the 
BCLRF or the Community Prosperity Partnership sub-group may be 
invited by the Director of Resources to attend the meetings. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



Last updated 29 October 2022 

6.0 Decision Making 
 
The Director of Resources shall consult with the Working Group prior to 
making funding decisions.  
 

7.0 Declaration of Interest 
 
If a Working Group Member has an interest in any proposal, they must 
leave the meeting whilst the matter is discussed.  This must be recorded in 
the minutes. 

 
8.0 Equal Opportunities 

 
Barrow Borough Council is committed to the concept of equal 
opportunities and expects all of its Members to support equal opportunities 
good practice.  The overriding purpose of the Cost of Living Fund is to 
ensure our residents are supported through the economic crisis. 

 
9.0 Confidentiality 

 
All proposals and matters discussed at the Working Group meetings should 
be treated in the strictest confidence and suitable care should be taken in 
notifying decisions following the meetings. 

 
10.0 Record of Meetings 

 
A record of all decisions will be made, these will not be publically available.  
A summary of the decisions made will be presented to the Executive 
Committee and that will set out the services/activities funded and budget 
information. 

 
11.0 Agenda and Reports 

 
It is intended that Members of the Working Group will receive the agenda 
and reports 5 days prior to each meeting.  The Working Group will also 
consider urgent applications without 5 days notice where there is a need to 
act quickly. 
 

12.0 Budgets 
 
At each meeting budget information shall be presented in terms of funds 
used and funds available. 

Page 44

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



Appendix 2 

Cost of Living Fund 

Small Grant Scheme 
 

 

Third Sector 

 

The third sector plays a hugely important role in providing a wide range of activities 

and services to residents that improve health and wellbeing and contribute to the 

local economy. 

 

The sector has been critical to the response to the pandemic and will continue to 

have a pivotal role in supporting local communities through the cost of living crisis. 

 

Organisations based within the heart of local communities are well trusted and 

respected by residents who may not want to access help elsewhere.  These 

organisations understand the needs and issues affecting residents and understand 

where the monies will be most effective.  

 

Purpose 

 

The rising cost of living means residents may fall into poverty, face eviction from their 

homes and suffer significant mental and physical detrimental health outcomes. 

 

This will not only affect the most vulnerable and deprived in the Borough that the 

Council and its partners are already aware of and supporting but also those who 

previously would have been able to manage and therefore would not usually have 

sought support but are likely to find themselves in more challenging circumstances. 

 

This grant programme aims to support the third sector in their efforts to mitigate the 

impact on people already experiencing financial hardship, to prevent other from 

becoming financially insecure, and to prepare to support people when they need 

help. 

 

Applicants 

 

Successful applications must meet the following:  

 

 applicants must be a constituted organisation, community interest company or 

charity 

 the funding must be used for the benefit of residents located in the Barrow 

Borough 

 applicants must demonstrate how their activities will provide support 

throughout the 2022-23 winter period 

 funding cannot be granted for retrospective costs or debt 

 applicants can apply to meet an increase in running costs, but organisations 

must be able to explain how grant funding would be used 

Page 45

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 2



Appendix 2 

All applications must be returned electronically via e-mail to <insert email address>. 

 

The deadline for applications is 12 noon 23 December 2022; successful applications 

shall be funded in January 2023. 

 

The Council welcomes and encourage applications from smaller organisations for 

lower amounts and will prioritise bids that can show collaboration between 

organisations. 

 

Applications must clearly outline their ability to promote one or more of the following 

criteria: 

 

 join up provision, improve signposting and raise awareness of support 

available 

 support people to make the best possible choices about how they use the 

income they have 

 help people maximise their income further (including but not limited to benefits 

maximisation) 

 tackle fuel poverty 

 tackle food poverty 

 support vulnerable groups 

 provide warm hubs and spaces for communities  

 

Applications will be assessed against their ability to meet the above criteria and 

successful applicants will receive a formal offer of grant in January 2023. 

 

Funding 

 

The Council has £110,000 available and will determine the individual amounts once 

all eligible applications have been verified. 

 

Other Information 

 

The Council’s decision is final and there is no right of appeal. 

 

All grant payments will be published on the Council’s website. 

Page 46

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 2



Document is Restricted

Page 47

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	8 UK Shared Prosperity Fund - Year 1 Projects
	9 Youth Investment Fund - Expression of interest for Lakeland House
	10 Workforce Strategy Statement
	Enc. 1 for Workforce Strategy Statement

	11 Finance and Delegation Update
	12 Cost of Living Support
	Enc. 1 for Cost of Living Support
	Enc. 2 for Cost of Living Support

	13 Leasehold Report
	14 Contract Update

